PLACE AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date:

Thursday, 29th October, 2020

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Remote Meeting

PLACE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE
Information for Members of the Public
Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic Worcester City Council will be holding this meeting in
accordance with the relevant legislative arrangements for remote meetings of a local authority. For
more information please refer to: Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations
2020.
Please note that this is a public meeting, conducting remotely by videoconferencing between invited
participants and live streamed for general access by audio via the Council’s website.
Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public. You can listen to a live audio stream of the
meeting via the City Council website www.worcester.gov.uk/councillors-democracy. You have the right
to inspect electronic copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background
documents used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the
foot of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for
which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor
background papers are open to public inspection.
Members of the public and press are permitted to report on the proceedings. "Reporting" in the context
of this remote meeting includes making an audio recording of the live streamed audio and providing
commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the proceedings,
including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings.
At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed
for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the
Agenda. Participation in remote meetings will extend to video and/or audio participation or written
submission read aloud at the appropriate point in the meeting by the Chairman. Participants need to
indicate that they wish to take part in a remote meeting by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day before
the meeting by telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. A Democratic Services Officer will
then contact to advise how to participate in the remote meeting, by invitation. Requests to participate
received later than this cut-off time may not be accommodated.
If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council, he/she will be deemed to
have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the Council’s website. The
Chairman of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion,
continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued
recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.
If you have any queries about this Agenda, require any details of background papers, or wish to
discuss the arrangements for public participation please contact Julian Pugh, Democratic Services
Administrator, Democratic Services, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct
line). E-Mail Address: committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk
This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic
minority languages. Please contact the above-named officer for further information.

2

Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee
Thursday, 29 October 2020
Members of the Committee:-

Chairman: Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson (C)
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Adrian Gregson (L)
Councillor Roger Berry (LCo)
Councillor Simon Geraghty (C)
Councillor Joy Squires (L)
C= Conservative

Councillor James Stanley (C)
Councillor Louis Stephen (G)

G = Green
L = Labour
LCo = Labour and Co-operative
LD = Liberal Democrat

AGENDA
Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)
1.

Appointment of Substitutes
To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a
Member of the Sub-Committee.

2.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of interest.

3.

Public Participation
Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a
maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the SubCommittee.

4.

Minutes
Page(s): 1 - 2
Of the meeting held on 7th September 2020 to be approved and signed.

5.

Quarter 2 Performance Report 2020/21
Page(s): 3 - 18
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer
Tel: 01905 722407
That the Planning and Economic Development Sub-Committee notes the Council’s
Quarter 2 performance for 2020/21.

6.

Setting of the Budget for 2021/22 and MTFP to 2025/26
Page(s): 19 - 30
Ward(s): All Wards
3

Contact Officer:

Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance
Tel: 01905 722007

1. That the Sub-Committee note the Budgets for the various services identified
for 2020/21; and
2. That the Sub-Committee consider the priorities within each service and
recommends any change of emphasis for the services’ Income and Efficiency
plans.
7.

Diglis to Carrington Bridge Active Travel Corridor Improvements
Page(s): 31 - 42
Ward(s): Battenhall/Cathedral/St Peters
Contact Officer:
Nick Kay, Economic Development Team Leader
Tel: 01905 722560
That the Sub-Committee:

8.



notes the contents of this report and confirms its in-principle approval for
the progression of the project;



authorises the Corporate Director-Place in consultation with the Chair and
Vice-Chair of this committee to enter into a joint delivery agreement with
the County Council securing the governance arrangements for the
delivery of section 1 of the riverside route;



recommends to Policy and Resources to authorise the expenditure of up
to £50,000 (from previously allocated feasibility funds towards delivery of
section 1 of the riverside route);



supports the expenditure of S106 funding to deliver section 1 of the
riverside route (as detailed in Appendix C);



authorises the Corporate Director-Place to submit funding bids to third
parties for the balance of funding required to deliver the Project; and



agrees to receive further reports on the outcome of advanced feasibility
work for the riverside route sections 2 and 3.

Museums Worcestershire Annual Review
Page(s): 43 - 64
Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer:
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager
Tel: 01905 25371
That the Sub-Committee note the activities undertaken in museums in 2019-20
and the impact made.

9.

City Centre Markets
Page(s): 65 - 74
Ward(s): Cathedral

4

Contact Officer:

Helen Mole, Tourism and City Centre Manager
Tel: 01905 722309

That the Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee:
1.

Approves the principle of managing the different elements of the City’s
markets offer separately on the expiry of the current contractual
arrangements in January, being:
a. Weekend High Street markets (covered in this report)
b. Angel Place traders (covered in this report)
c. Victorian Christmas Fayre market stalls (to be discussed at a future
sub-committee meeting)

2.

Authorises the Director of Place, in consultation with the Chair and Vice
Chair of the Sub Committee, to procure operators through a concession
contract for a period of up to 5 years with the option of a further 2 years
extension, to deliver weekend High Street markets (Saturday and/or
Sunday);

3.

Authorises the Director of Place to directly award a contract to a market
operator to manage the Angel Place market on an interim basis for a period
of up to 2 years, pending the implementation of the Future High Streets
Fund redevelopment if this bid is successful;

4. Notes that a report will be brought to the Sub-Committee next year giving
options for the future delivery of the Victorian Christmas Fayre; and
5. Agrees that the City Council should offer to act as a single point of contact to
manage events and bookings within the City Centre and notes that the
Director of Place will engage with the County Council to achieve this.
10.

Any Other Business
Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of sufficient urgency as to warrant
consideration.

11.

Items involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information
The Committee are invited to pass the following resolution:That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of information as defined in Schedule
12A of the said Act.
PART II
(ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PRIVATE)

Exempt – not for publication because the item contains information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the local
authority holding that information) – category 3
5

12.

City Centre Markets
Page(s): 75 - 76
Ward(s): Cathedral
Contact Officer:
Helen Mole, Tourism and City Centre Manager
Tel: 01905 722309
To note the contents of the exempt Appendix to this report.

6

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

PLACE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUB-COMMITTEE
7th September 2020
Present:

Councillor Mrs. Lucy Hodgson in the Chair
Councillors Barnes, Berry, Geraghty,
Gregson (Vice-Chairman), Stanley and
Stephen

Officers:

Apologies:

13

Corin Beames



Andrew
Round
Philippa
Smith




Senior Planning Policy
Officer
Corporate Director Place
Deputy Director,
Economic Development
and Planning

Councillor Squires

Appointment of Substitutes
Councillor Barnes for Councillor Squires.

14

Declarations of Interest
None.

15

Public Participation
None.

16

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 27th July 2020 be
approved as a correct record and signed remotely by the Chairman.

17

Local Development Scheme 2020-2023
The Sub-Committee considered a report on the updated Local Development
Scheme.
The Senior Planning Policy Officer presented the report and explained that it is
considered good practice to update Local Development Schemes at least annually.
The four main changes to the LDS include: updates to South Worcestershire
Development Plan Review timetables; updates to the Travellers and Travelling
Showpeople Development Plan Document; updates to the positions of
Neighbourhood Plans and Minerals and Waste Planning and updates to the
Statement of Community Involvement to allow for temporary measures to be
applied relating to consultation methods as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Page 2
7th September 2020

2

The Sub-Committee noted the reasons for the delay to the South Worcestershire
Development Plan Review.
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee:
1. recommend that Council approve the Local Development scheme
2020-2023; and
2. delegate authority to the Corporate Director – Place in
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Place and Economic
Development Sub-Committee to make minor amendments to the
LDS prior to publication.
18

Markets Review
The item was withdrawn from the agenda.

19

Any Other Business
None.

Duration of the meeting: 7.05 pm to 7.25 pm

Chairman at the meeting on
29th October 2020

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

Report to: Planning and Economic Development Sub-Committee, 26th October
2020
Report of: Corporate Director - Finance and Resources

Subject:

QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2020/21

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Planning and Economic Development Sub-Committee notes the
Council’s Quarter 2 performance for 2020/21.

2.

Performance Reporting Framework

2.1

A suite of Performance Scorecards have been developed providing a one page
overview of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under
the functions of each committee.

2.2

The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief
narrative update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the
form of run graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of
progression, trends and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG
assessments (Red, Amber or Green).

2.3

The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2020/21 with projects completed in the last
financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee.

2.4

The Quarter 2 performance report for the Planning and Economic Development SubCommittee is attached as Appendix 1.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All
Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,
01905 722407,
Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Page 6
Appendix 1
Place & Economic Development
Sub-Committee
Performance Report
PED Projects & Actions 2020/21
Action Status
Cancelled
Overdue; Neglected
Unassigned; Check Progress
Not Started; In Progress; Assigned
Completed

City Centre Wifi
Contract discussions were interrupted by Covid-19 and
furloughing of InTechnology staff. Discussions were reconvened in August to agree final (minor) amendments to
the contract document. Prior to completion of these the
supplier advised that due to uncertainty within the
economy/footfall they were no longer able to offer Wi-Fi
concession contracts. As such consideration will need to be
given to the potential for delivering free public Wi-Fi
network with data monitoring capability, alongside a
Tourism App. A report will follow to the next PED subcommittee meeting.

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Due Date

31-Mar-2020

Original Due
Date

31-Dec-2018

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

Review of the South Worcestershire Development Plan
The SWDP timetable has been amended as per the Local
Development Scheme (LDS), which came in effect on 1st
October 2020. The revised timetable is as follows:
March 2021 - Further Preferred Options Consultation
(Regulation 18 (iii))
October/November 2021 - Publication (Regulation 19)
February/March 2022 - Submission (Regulation 22)
April 2023 - Adoption (Regulation 26)
The above timetable is subject to the government's
proposed changes to the planning system in England, which
is currently out for consultation. Some of the proposed
changes, if brought into effect, may impact on the ability of
2

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Due Date

01-Nov-2021

Original Due
Date

01-Nov-2021

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

Page 7

the South Worcestershire Councils to meet this amended
timetable.
Feasibility assessment for foot/cycle path - Diglis to Carrington Bridge
Report to be presented to PED sub-committee in October,
Sponsor
setting out progress to date and delivery options for section Due Date
1 of the route.
Original Due
Date

Philippa Smith
31-Dec-2019
31-Dec-2019

Current Status
Expected
Outcome
Foregate Arches / Cultural Development Fund
Progress made this period includes:
Workstream 1 - Infrastructure

• Spellar Metcalf appointed as main contractor –

commencement on site details being finalised.
• Route opened between Netherton Court and Hive/Croft
Road – lighting and signing of route completed –
observation of footfall appears good.

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Due Date

25-Feb-2022

Original Due
Date

31-Mar-2021

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

Workstream 2 - Festivals
Progressing with socially distancing concepts in the light of
Covid19 restrictions.
Workstream 3 – Participate
Progressing with program focusing on online delivery.
Workstream 4 – Destination Management
Work with partners on track.
City Centre Master Plan - Feasibility Works for Key Sites
Archaeology workstream

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Due Date

31-Mar-2020

commencing

Original Due
Date

31-Mar-2020

Drainage/Flooding workstream
• draft report being collated for consideration

Current Status

• Copenhagen Street trial trenches/pits investigations

Expected
Outcome

3

Page 8

Future High Streets Fund Submission of Business Case
Submission of bid made in July - awaiting outcome expected late 2020

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Due Date

30-Jul-2020

Original Due
Date

30-Jul-2020

Current Status
Expected
Outcome
Towns Fund/Town Board initiation stage
Draft Vision and Priorities shared with Town Board and
members. Project proposals being developed for
consideration on whether to be included within Town
Investment Plan. Proposed to submit submission in January
2021.

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Due Date

30-Oct-2020

Original Due
Date

30-Oct-2020

Current Status
Expected
Outcome

4

Page 9

PED Key Performance Indicators 2020/21
PI Status
Alert
Warning
OK
Unknown
Data Only

Major planning applications determined in 13 weeks
Description: Percentage of major planning applications determined in 13 weeks or agreed
time

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

100%

Current
Target

90%

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

4 out of 4 major applications determined within 13 weeks or agreed extension of time.

5

Page 10

Minor planning applications determined within 8 weeks
Description: Percentage of minor planning applications determined within 8 weeks or
agreed time

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

96.5%

Current
Target

90%

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

84 out of 87 applications determined within 8 weeks or agreed extension of time, of which 48
out of 49 (97.9%) comprise householder applications..
Other planning applications determined within 8 weeks
Description: Percentage of 'other' planning applications determined within 8 weeks or
agreed time

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

100%

Current
Target

90%

6

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Page 11

16 out of 16 other applications determined within 13 weeks or agreed extension of time.
Appeals of major planning decisions allowed
Description: Percentage of major appeals allowed of major planning decisions

RAG
Aim to Minimise

Current
Value

0%

Current
Target

10%

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

No appeals of major decisions allowed
All business grants awarded - starter and growth grants
Description: Total number of business grants awarded: start-ups and growth grants

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

5

Current
Target

4

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Currently above target with applications pending. There have been a lot of enquiries about

7

Page 12

grants over the last few months.
5 year housing land supply
Description:

5 year housing land supply

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

8.76

Current
Target

5

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Annual PI. It is anticipated that Five Year Housing Land Supply information will be available
for reporting by the next update.
Homes completed against SWDP target
Description: Number of homes completed against SWDP target

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

240

Current
Target

261

8

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Page 13

Annual PI. It is anticipated that 'Homes completed against the SWDP target' information will
be available for reporting by the next update. However, draft figures indicate that the target
will not be achieved in 2019/20.
Employment land completions (hectares)
Description: Hectares of employment land (B1/B2/B8) completed

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

0

Current
Target

3.34

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Annual PI. It is anticipated that 'Employment land completions' information will be available
for reporting by the next update.
Key sector SME’s supported to recruit a 16 – 24 year old apprentice, for the first
time or the first time in 12 months
Description: Worcester City SME’s in receipt of a Worcester City Apprenticeship Grant as a
contribution towards cost of recruiting a 16-24 year old apprentice

9

Page 14

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

10

Current
Target

15

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Annual PI – next report Q4 2020/21.
Worcester City SME’s assisted with higher skilled/skill shortage recruitment
Description: Worcester City SME’s in receipt of a Worcester City Graduate Grant as a
contribution towards costs of recruiting and/or training a
student/intern/graduate

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

11

Current
Target

15

Annual PI – next report Q4 2020/21.

10

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Page 15

No. of businesses assisted under the ERDF Business Support Programme
Description: No. of businesses assisted under the European Regional Development Fund
Business Support Programme.

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

114

Current
Target

112

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

The number of business assists is for both the previous and new phase of the ERDF
programme. The output is slightly above target, although the demand for business assists
has dropped due to the COVID situation.
No. of business grants awarded under the ERDF Business Support Programme
Description: No. of business grants awarded under the European Regional Development
Fund Business Support Programme

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

101

Current

71

11

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Page 16

Target
The number of business grants is for both the previous and new phase of the ERDF
programme. The output is above target for both phases.
Value (£) of business grants awarded under the ERDF Business Support
Programme)
Description: Value (£) of business grants awarded under the European Regional
Development Fund Business Support Programme

RAG
Aim to Maximise

Current
Value

£901,434.0 Sponsor
0

Current
Target

£771,506.0
0

Philippa Smith

The grant amount reported is for the schemes in the existing programme and those in the
new programme which have already started. There has been some grant money awarded
under the new programme. The Enterprising Worcestershire start up programme finished in
June and the new programme is due to start this quarter

12

Page 17

City Centre Footfall
Description: To monitor the footfall within the City Centre to enable action to be taken
should the footfall drop significantly below the target level

Current
Value

RAG
Aim to Maximise

17,454,921

Sponsor

Philippa Smith

Current
Target

Next update Q3 2020/21.
Visitors to City Museums
Description: A combined PI of all visitors to the city museum sites The Commandery and
the City Art Gallery & Museum. This includes both paid and free admissions.

Current
Value

RAG
Aim to Maximise

8,487

Current
Target

13

Sponsor

Philippa Tinsley

Page 18

Admissions and commercial income from City museums
Description: Income earned at The Commandery and the City Art Gallery & Museum from
all activities including paid admissions, retail, activities and rental.

Current
Value

RAG
Aim to Maximise

£9,823.00

Sponsor

Philippa Tinsley

Current
Target

With regularly-changing regulations, it has proved impossible to set new targets that can be
reliably useful.
Instead, income is reviewed weekly by the service and regularly by the finance team and
compared against a 'normal' year. This is used to manage the budget and to complete
returns for government and external funders.
In Q2 the largest income areas (retail at the Art Gallery & Museum and admissions at The
Commandery) were performing at 47% and 56% of 2019 actuals respectively. However other
income areas such as schools admissions and room hire still have a nil performance.

14

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

Report to: Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee, 29th October 2020
Report of: Head of Finance

Subject:

SETTING OF THE BUDGET FOR 2021/22 AND MTFP TO 2025/26

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Committee note the Budgets for the various services identified for
2020/21;

2.

That the Committee consider the priorities within each service and
recommends any change of emphasis for the services’ Income and
Efficiency plans.

3.

Background

3.1

The summary budgets contained in Appendix 1 for 2020/21 were approved by Full
Council on 18th February 2020 and published in the annual Budget Book.

3.2

These provide detailed budgets for each of the Council’s services covering both
income and expenditure.

3.3

The Council also produces a Medium Term Financial Plan for the next 5 years setting
out the high level pressures and opportunities that are likely to need to be
addressed.

4.

Review of Service Budgets

4.1

Members are asked to review the budget for each service and consider whether it is
appropriate for the service delivery requirements.

4.2

The Council adopted an Income and Efficiency Plan for the three years from 20192020 to deliver savings and improvements to the Council’s finances. A summary of
these and an indication of whether they have been achieved is shown in Appendix
2.

4.3

With most of the items in the Council’s Income and Efficiency Plan now achieved or
no longer considered practical, the Council’s services have carried out a thorough
review to identify new areas for efficiency improvement. These have been collated
and are being considered for inclusion in a new Income and Efficiency Plan for 20212025. This will be presented to members in due course.

4.4

Members are invited to submit suggestions of potential service improvements that
could be included in the services’ Income and Efficiency Plan plans in order to
continue to achieve service objectives and to deliver the relevant aims of the City
Plan.

Page 20

4.5

Given that the Council faces a reduction in its future funding and has experienced a
significant reduction in its income, this exercise is likely to result in a reduction or
reallocation of resources rather than an increase in the net budget available.

4.

Projects and Capital Expenditure

4.1

In a separate report to this committee meeting, Members have received a progress
report on the various projects aligned to this committee. In addition, the 2020/21 Q2
year-end forecast Capital Programme is shown on Appendix 4a and the 2020-2024
Capital programme approved as part of the Budget in February 2020 is shown in
Appendix 4b.

4.2

Members are asked to consider whether the current projects are still appropriate for
each service and whether there are any further needs that require addressing. This
should include phasing the projects across the full 5 year term of the MTFP based on
the need and importance of each one.

4.3

The original £3.3m budget allocated to the City Plan was previously split into broad
themes by members. Since then a number of projects have been approved against
this funding. The summary of the original allocations, the projects that have been
approved and the balance of funding remaining in each City Plan theme are shown in
Appendix 3.

4.4

Members are asked to consider whether the amounts allocated to the City Plan
themes are still appropriate and whether there are any further needs that require
addressing through a reallocation of the funds available.

4.5

Given that the Council faces a reduction in its future funding, recommendations
should be prioritised to ensure the limited resources are allocated most effectively.

5

Implications

5.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications
None arising directly from this report.

5.2

Legal and Governance Implications
The Council has a requirement to set a balanced budget for 2021-22.

5.3

Risk Implications
None arising directly from this report.

5.4

Corporate/Policy Implications
None arising directly from this report.

5.5

Equality Implications
None arising directly from this report.

5.6

Human Resources Implications
None arising directly from this report.

5.7

Health and Safety Implications
None arising directly from this report.

Page 21

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

All
Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance – Tel: 01905 722007
None

This page is intentionally left blank

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
BUDGET 2020/21

PLACE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUBCOMMITTEE
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Internal Recharges
Total Expenditure
Internal Recharges
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Total Income
Grand Total

Appendix 1
Annual Budget
2018/19

Final Actuals
2018/19

Annual Budget
2019/20

Base Budget
2020/21

Income &
Efficiency Plan
2020/21

Approved
Base Budget
2020/21

1,132,375
100
6,890
324,190
580,830
32,220
2,076,605
0
(45,687)
(785,470)
(247,880)
(1,079,037)

1,128,803
2,706
8,441
337,294
555,638
32,716
2,065,598
0
(73,563)
(733,643)
(242,683)
(1,049,889)

1,115,770
1,100
8,250
261,280
233,290
32,220
1,651,910
0
(12,000)
(720,090)
(265,880)
(997,970)

1,170,570
1,100
8,290
233,935
222,810
32,220
1,668,925
0
(12,000)
(710,130)
(235,880)
(958,010)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,170,570
1,100
8,290
233,935
222,810
32,220
1,668,925
0
(12,000)
(710,130)
(235,880)
(958,010)

997,568

1,015,709

653,940

710,915

0

710,915

Summary by sub-service:
Annual Budget
2019/20

Base Budget
2020/21

Income &
Efficiency Plan
2020/21

Approved
Base Budget
2020/21

387,890
(474,400)
(86,510)
98,640
(184,620)
(85,980)
171,220
(16,100)
155,120
88,290
(110,350)
(22,060)
433,995
433,995
247,650
(33,687)
213,963
272,660
272,660
376,260
(259,880)
116,380

371,777
(486,101)
(114,324)
145,244
(146,115)
(871)
175,093
(22,123)
152,970
57,364
(90,268)
(32,904)
429,111
429,111
271,931
(49,687)
222,244
269,565
269,565
345,514
(255,595)
89,919

409,570
(472,030)
(62,460)
101,190
(162,710)
(61,520)
179,800
(5,000)
174,800
90,060
(110,350)
(20,290)
282,960
282,960
250,580
0
250,580
47,810
47,810
289,940
(247,880)
42,060

455,010
(482,070)
(27,060)
107,560
(112,710)
(5,150)
178,670
(5,000)
173,670
91,860
(110,350)
(18,490)
302,480
302,480
213,550
0
213,550
45,830
45,830
273,965
(247,880)
26,085

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

455,010
(482,070)
(27,060)
107,560
(112,710)
(5,150)
178,670
(5,000)
173,670
91,860
(110,350)
(18,490)
302,480
302,480
213,550
0
213,550
45,830
45,830
273,965
(247,880)
26,085

997,568

1,015,709

653,940

710,915

0

710,915

Agenda Item 6

Grand Total

Final Actuals
2018/19

Appendix 1

Dev Control and Enforcement Expenditure
Dev Control and Enforcement Income
Dev Control and Enforcement Total
Land Charges Expenditure
Land Charges Income
Land Charges Total
Heritage and Design Expenditure
Heritage and Design Income
Heritage and Design Total
Building Control Expenditure
Building Control Income
Building Control Total
Economic Dev and Regen Expenditure
Economic Dev and Regen Total
Planning Policy Expenditure
Planning Policy Income
Planning Policy Total
Intitatives and Projects Expenditure
Intitatives and Projects Total
City Centre and Tourism Expenditure
City Centre and Tourism Income
City Centre and Tourism Total

Annual Budget
2018/19

Page 23

PLACE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SUBCOMMITTEE

This page is intentionally left blank

Worcester City Council - Achieving Excellence - Income and Efficiencies Plan 2020-2024
Appendix 2

Place and Econcomic Development Sub-committee
Project
Reference

Project Title

Committee

Service

TP-PA-02.05

Tourism Contract & Services

PED

Econ Dev & Planning

TP-PA-07.04

Building Control Transformation

PED

Econ Dev & Planning

new

Security procurement

PED

Econ Dev & Planning

new

Heritage services review

PED

Econ Dev & Planning

2019/20 RAG
-20,000

2020/21 RAG 2021/22 RAG

G

Notes
Saving achieved

-30,000

Saving no longer considerd feasible

-30,000

Solution found but saving not achievable
0

-35,000

-30,000

-35,000

Team restructure

PED
Total

PED

-50,000

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 2

This page is intentionally left blank

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
CITY PLAN SUMMARY - October 2020

Appendix 3

Projects
Refurbishment of 2 Copenhagen Street (Kiln)
Extension to WCC Business start Up & Growth Grant Prog.
Work Placements
Tourism strategy (Phase 2)
Tourism strategy (Phase 1)
Support business development initiatives
Link by new pedestrian bridge Kepax Park to Gheluvelt Park
Business start up and growth grants programme 2020-23
Tourism Strategy Phase 3
Tourism and Events Officer extension
City Museums, commercial development projects
City Museums, national promotion projects
Worcester Life Stories project
Playing Pitch Strategy
Total for this committee

PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED
PED

100,000
20,000
15,000
97,500
49,900
100,000
875,000
75,000
25,000
45,000
64,000
35,000
50,000
30,000

-100,000
-20,000
-15,000
-18,910
-36,000
-28,880
-111,655
0
0
-45,000
0
0
0
-30,000

Forecast
Balance at
31/3/21
78,590
13,900
71,120
763,345
75,000
25,000
64,000
35,000
50,000
-

1,581,400

-405,445

1,175,955

Total
Allocation

6,311,245

Total spend to
date

-1,910,510

Progress

Spend plan in place on Covid recovery & tourism
Spend plan in place on Covid recovery & tourism
£100k originally allocated in 18/19. Spend this year dependant on number of grant applications.
Awaiting result of planning application
This runs until 2023 after using £71k reserve above
Spend plan in place on Covid recovery & tourism
Used to fund post for 20/21
Plans in place but held up due to pandemic.
Plans in place but held up due to pandemic.
Virtual time travel project & backfill of Historic records officer post - 2 year project started in 20/21.
PO raised, awaiting invoice from WDC

Page 27

Funding required for all committees
Current shortfall

Committee

2,819,335
-305,501

Balance on City Plan Fund

2,513,834

Allocations not yet approved

1,377,928

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND FINANCING 2020-25

Scheme

Appendix 4a

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2020-25

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

785

625

0

0

0

1,410

Car Park Machines

100

0

0

0

0

100

Development Fund

5,811

0

0

0

0

5,811

Diglis Projects

135

0

0

0

0

135

Hostile Vehicle Mitigation

250

0

0

0

0

250

House renovations (DFGs)

695

695

695

695

695

3,475

ICT infrastructure/projects

100

100

100

100

100

500

Property Plan (other capital projects)

306

68

90

0

0

464

2,850

0

0

0

0

2,850

913

553

628

931

918

3,943

50

50

50

50

50

250

11,995

2,091

1,563

1,776

1,763

19,187

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2020-25

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,320

1,320

695

695

695

4,725

S106 Contributions

135

0

0

0

0

135

Earmarked Reserves

160

0

0

0

0

160

Capital Receipts

835

343

240

150

150

1,718

0

0

0

0

0

0

9,545

427

628

931

918

12,449

11,995

2,091

1,563

1,776

1,763

19,187

Arches Project

Sport Development Initiatives
Vehicle Replacement Programme
Wheeled bins replacement
TOTAL

Financing Source

External Grants

Revenue Financing
Borrowing
TOTAL

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
CAPITAL PROGRAMME/PROJECTS EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2020-21

Appendix 4b
Budgeted Financing 2020-21

2020-21
Revised
Budget

2020-21
Forecast

£000

£000

139

139

139

2 Kings Court

5,778

5,766

-

Arches Project

927

907

30
23

30
23

Scheme

145 Bromyard Road

Arterial and Strategic Routes
In Cab Technology
Battenhall Park and Duck Brook

14

14

Car Park Machines & Resurfacing

167

19

CCTV Upgrade

External
Grants

Reserves
&
Revenue

S106

Capital
Receipts

Borrowing
(MRP)

Total
Financing

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,778

5,778

625

282

139
19

927

30
23
14

30
23

-

14

-

167

152

184

184

184

32

32

Commandery Project

33

10

33

Copenhagen Street

33

33

-

33

-

-

-

-

20

20

20

Customer Service Hub

32

7

7

-

135
773

135
773

22

Guildhall Improvement Access

50

61

Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
Housing Co Location Project
ICT Projects

25
9
17

25
9
17

17

86

86

86

2,850

2,850

-

Diglis Project
Disabled Facilities Grants

Landscaping at Perdiswell
Loans to Third Parties

751

-

1

-

Museum Foyer Project

-

3

-

983

983

-

Play Area Projects

63

63

Pocket Park - Sanctuary Close/Hopton Street

30

30

257

256

Property 5-Year Plan
Public Realm
Sansome Walk Site Demolition
Sidbury Public Realm
Tennis In The Park
Water Fountains
Wheelie Bin Replacements

50

50

1,500

1,500

17

17

317

317

7

135
773
50
25

25
9
17

2,850

2,850

9

86
0
0
449

534

63
-

257

28

-

9

9

9

50

140

-

30
257

50

120

983
63

17

-

0
7

135

13

750

33
20

50

Lyppard Grange Pond Viewing Platform
Ops Vehicle Replacement

32
33

50
532

218

1,500

170

317

17

17
9
50

50

Accelerated Towns Fund - Arches

245

245

245

245

Accelerated Towns Fund - SMG charging points

400

400

400

400

Accelerated Towns Fund - Community Centre

381

381

355

15,990

15,892

3,305

853

203

1,590

26

381

10,040

15,990

Page 30

Crematorium Memorial Tree

-

100

Cinderella Project

Crematorium Investment

32

67

Page 31

Agenda Item 7

Report to: Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee, 29th October 2020
Report of: Corporate Director – Place

Subject:

DIGLIS TO CARRINGTON
IMPROVEMENTS

BRIDGE

ACTIVE

1.

Recommendation

1.1

The Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee:

TRAVEL

CORRIDOR



notes the contents of this report and confirms its in-principle approval
for the progression of the project;



authorises the Corporate Director-Place in consultation with the Chair
and Vice-Chair of this committee to enter into a joint delivery agreement
with the County Council securing the governance arrangements for the
delivery of section 1 of the riverside route;



recommends to P&R committee to authorise the expenditure of up to
£50,000 (from previously allocated feasibility funds towards delivery of
section 1 of the riverside route);



supports the expenditure of S106 funding to deliver section 1 of the
riverside route (as detailed in Appendix C);



authorises the Corporate Director-Place to submit funding bids to third
parties for the balance of funding required to deliver the Project; and



agrees to receive further reports on the outcome of advanced feasibility
work for the riverside route sections 2 and 3.

2.

Background

2.1

Worcester City Council has been working in partnership with Worcestershire County
Council on exploring the feasibility and options to improve pedestrian and cycling
provision from Diglis Bridge to Carrington Bridge. Including:



2.2

Assessing existing pedestrian/cycle routes serving the area; and
Assessing feasibility with regard to delivering a new/improved pedestrian/cycle
route.

This work links in with Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4) which identifies an Active Travel
Corridor (ATC) between Kempsey Village and Diglis in Worcester. This route can be
along the River Severn, generally following the route of the Severn Way footpath;
along the A38; or a mixture of the two using local footpaths and other Public Rights
of Way (PRoW).

Page 32

2.3

The aim is to improve connectivity and movement corridors along the riverside, to
existing and proposed (South Worcestershire Urban Extension) residential areas as
well as improving access to the public open space of the riverside. It will also link in
with wider cycling and walking projects for the City which includes elements of the
Riverside project, Diglis Playing Fields project and Kepax bridge project.

2.4

It should be noted that the route can be split into three sections and anyone of these
sections can be delivered/progressed independently of each other. Obviously, the full
route will provide the most benefits.

3.

Progress to date

3.1

To date the following surveys/studies have been carried out:






Initial site inspections along the western bank of the River Severn to identify
potential constraints;
Surveys of current walking and cycling infrastructure within the immediate area;
Topographical survey between Diglis and Carrington (sections 1, 2 and 3);
Initial ecological assessments between Diglis and Carrington (sections 1, 2 and 3);
and
Detailed plans and costings for delivery of section 1.

3.2

It should be noted that during the above work it became apparent that the ‘riverside’
route could be clearly be split into 3 sections with links into existing national and
local cycling routes. As can be seen at Appendix A.

3.3

Detailed assessment and costing has been undertaken on section 1. With findings
attached at Appendix B. A number of route options for this section have been
explored and of these, Option 3 is your Officers recommended route. This is
expanded further within section 4 Preferred Option of this report below.

3.4

It is proposed to utilise a delivery partnership with Worcestershire County Council, as
has been utilised on other infrastructure projects within the City, where a joint
project board oversees delivery on behalf of the City Council. This will allow a cost
effective delivery through the use of existing procurement frameworks and
contractor relationships.

4.

Preferred Option

4.1

Worcester City Council, in partnership with Worcestershire County Council, to
progress the proposal in line with the recommendations above including delivery of
option 3 for section 1 of the route.

4.2

When progressing a physical intervention there is always a balancing between
conflicting priorities. In this instance we need to balance bio-diversity impacts with
sustainability benefits.

4.3

Improving walking and cycling networks will have significant sustainability benefits
giving people real transport choices, as well as providing access to the open spaces
and the natural environment (with the positive physical and mental health benefits
that this provides).

Page 33

4.4

It is worth noting that when considering which route to progress significant weight
was attached to minimising the potential impact on ecology within the area. Option 3
is identified as having the least impact, mainly due to the reduced earthworks (Cut
730m³, Fill 130m³), is required compared to other options. The reduction in
earthworks will therefore reduce the impact on existing vegetation and whilst being
the most expensive route to deliver it is considered the extra are merited in this
instance.

4.4

Section 1 of the route will provide significant improvements to the ‘off road’ walking
and cycling infrastructure within the area and can be considered as either a stand
alone route, or as part of a wider route with section 2 and 3.

4.5

The preferred option is to deliver all 3 sections in due course once additional funding
is identified.

5.

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

For the reasons set out above no other options are considered appropriate. Current
surveys/reports do not indicate any show stoppers. As such, subject to funding being
acquired, there are no currently identified issues which would prevent the
progression of section 1 of the project and further investigation for delivery of
sections 2 and 3.

6.

Implications

6.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications

6.1.1 The preferred option has an estimated cost of circa £265,000 (figures are shown in
Appendix B).
6.1.2 The project was allocated £100,000 at Council on 20th February 2018 and to date
circa £25,000 has been spent on feasibility work/surveys.
6.1.3 The above recommendations seeks to utilise up to £50,000 for delivery of section 1.
This funding along with S106 agreement funds identified (see Appendix C) will
deliver section 1 and will still allow £25,000 to be used for enhanced feasibility
assessment for sections 2 and 3.
6.1.4 Local Members have been engaged with, on this funding approach, and the general
consensus was one of ‘in principle’ support. It is worth noting that a number of
projects have already been delivered within the Diglis Park area as part of S106
contributions identified within the two agreements and that there is still available
funds due to underspend on some of the identified projects and inability to deliver a
canal bridge due to physical constraints of the tow path.
6.1.5 As with any S106 contribution there is a time limit for the funds to be spent
otherwise they are returned to the developer. The proposal before you will ensure
that these contributions are used within the agreements geographical area and
within the parameters of what can be funded by these agreements.
6.1.6 Further funding opportunities will need to be explored to deliver sections 2 and 3 and
as such further bids will be submitted when they arise.

Page 34

6.2

Legal and Governance Implications
Land and infrastructure ownership agreements as well as maintenance arrangements
will need to be progressed between the City and County.

6.3

Risk Implications
The progression of the project through to the delivery and implementation stage
raises a number of risks.
As part of the project board delivery approach a risk register will be created.
However, it should be noted that key risks include:





6.4

Commencement of works reveal abnormal constraints adding to the costs - due
diligence with regard to work/surveys have been undertaken throughout the
feasibility work to date and no issues have been identified.
Tendered construction costs exceed project budget - due diligence with regard to
work/surveys have been undertaken throughout the feasibility work to date and no
issues have been identified.
Land ownership agreement cannot be reached (section 2 and 3) - further
investigations are to be progressed to identify if potential ‘pinchpoints’ are apparent
in the later sections of the route and appropriate engagement/action will occur.
Statutory agreements cannot be acquired – statutory bodies have been engaged
with on the project.
Corporate/Policy Implications
The creation of an improved walking and cycling route to the south of the City will
support a number of themes in the City Plan including:





6.5

Stronger and Connected Communities - connecting neighbourhoods through physical
infrastructure
Healthy and Active City - promotion of walking and cycling routes for leisure
activities as well as linking employment and residential areas of the City (active
travel)
Sustaining and Improving our Assets - provision of improved access to the riverside
and associated green spaces
Equality Implications
The project will bring about changes to the physical form of the area. As the design
process progresses equalities impact considerations will need to be carried out.

6.6

Human Resources Implications
None directly arising from this report.

6.7

Health and Safety Implications
None directly arising from this report.

Page 35

6.8

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications
Social – improved connections between communities to the south of the City and
City centre along with access to the wider walking and cycling network.
Improvements to walking and cycling facilities obviously have positive impacts on
physical and mental health well being for all.
It should be noted that during the consultation process for the Environmental
Strategy, a significant number of comments were received making reference to the
need for improvements to the City’s walking and cycling network.
Environment – The riverside is a natural environment as well as heritage asset
(conservation area). The introduction of a foot/cycleway will have an impact on
these.
However this risk has been mitigated by due diligence throughout the
survey/technical work and ensuring that the scheme incorporates appropriate
mitigation measures within the final design. Option 3, recommended route, is
identified as having the least potential impact.
Economic – improved movement corridors along the river will assist with
opportunities for residents and visitors to consider non-motor vehicle trips as well as
opportunities for improved leisure offer in this area.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

Cathedral/Battenhall/St Peters
Nick Kay Tel: 01905 722560
Email: Nick.kay@worcester.gov.uk
Appendix A, B & C

Page 36

Appendix A

Red
Indicative Section 1: Diglis Bridge to St Marks Close
Purple
Indicative Section 2: Duck Brook Bridge to Dace Road
Yellow
Indicative Section 3: Dace Road to Carrington Bridge
Blue (solid) National Cycle Route (on road)
Blue (dash) Local Cycle Route (on road)
Orange (solid)
National Cycle Route (traffic free)
Orange (dash)
Local Cycle Route (traffic free)

Page 37

Appendix B
Three route options have been identified section 1.
Option 1
Route option 1 maintains the existing PROW route, while lifting the level of the footway by
up to 2.5m. This allows for the removal of two existing sets of steps creating a more level
footway. This change in vertical alignment requires extensive earthworks which will have
an impact upon buildability as well as the local ecology.
Below identifies the proposed route as well as extent of extensive earthworks.

Option 2
Route option 2 utilises an alternative alignment to the north. As with option 1 there is a
requirement to lift the levels of this route but only over the last 100m, the first 140m can
be constructed at existing levels.
Below identifies the proposed route as well as extent of extensive earthworks.

Page 38

Option 3
Route option 3 is made up of an amalgamation of both options 1 and 2. The first section
follows route option 2, minimizing earthworks as existing levels can be utilised here, the
second section follows option 1 which helps to limit impact upon ecology.
Below identifies the proposed route as well as extent of extensive earthworks.

Page 39

Review
Option
Costings

Advantage

1
£235.5K

2
£221.5K

3
£241.5K

Shorter
length
(195m), maintaining
existing
alignment
Limits
impact
on
ecology due to lower
level of trees and
planting here

Reduced
earthworks as
majority
or
route
maintains
existing levels
(Cut
790m³,
Fill
125m³
More desirable
vertical
alignment,
ramp
only
required
at
eastern end

Reduced
earthworks as
majority
or
route maintains
existing levels
(Cut
730m³,
Fill
130m³)
Limits
impact
on ecology due
to lower level
of trees and
planting where
earthworks are
required

Page 40

Disadvantage

High
level
of
earthworks due to
level change required
over entire extents
(Fill 1100m³, Cut
50m³)
Less
desirable
vertical
alignment,
ramp
required
at
both western and
eastern
ends
Poor access for works
plant, haul road may
be required

Longer length
(240m)
Indirect route
Poor access for
works
plant,
haul road may
be required

Longer length
(280m)
Indirect route
Poor access for
works
plant,
haul road may
be required

The above costs do not include replacement bridge over Duck Brook. However similar
replacement bridges have been provided for circa £25k.

Page 41

Appendix C
That S139 contribution in lieu of canal footbridge (currently under discussion
with developers but anticipated to be in excess of £150,000) and the
underspend on Diglis Playing Fields S126 (£65,000) can be utilised once
collected.
Details of S139 indicates contribution to be spent on:
Open Space
1) Enhancement / provision of appropriate facilities for use primarily by the
children and young people on land owned by Severn Trent at Portland Walk
2) To enhance the play facilities at Cherry Orchard
3) Upgrading of the Cherry Orchard playing field (including car parking and
changing rooms)
4) Enhancement of the Cherry Orchard Nature Reserve including potential
interpretation centre and improved access by the way of the Severn Way footpath
Open Space (19,341 only)
1) Enhancement of Diglis recreation ground
2) Development of playing fields at Battenhall
3) The acquisition of land and laying out of allotments at land adjacent to
electricity substation in St Peters
4) Maintenance of casual open space at Duck Brook Corridor
Allotments
1) Towards the provision and/or improvement of allotments in the vicinity of the
Land
Justification
The proposed works constitute improvements to access routes including Severn Way
footpath and as such satisfies the type of works identified in Open Space no.4 as well as
Duck Brook Corridor no.4.
Details of S126 indicates contribution to be spent on:
Open Space
1) Production of Masterplan
2) The enhancement of children's play space
3) The upgrading of playing fields and sports facilities (including changing rooms)
4) Enhancement of public open space including the Cherry Orchard local nature
reserve (but not Diglis Dock Road)
Justification
The proposed works constitute enhancement of public open space through improved access
and movement and as such satisfies the type of works identified in Open Space no.4.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

Agenda Item 8

Report to: Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee, 29th October 2020
Report of: Corporate Director - Place

Subject:

MUSEUMS WORCESTERSHIRE ANNUAL REVIEW

1.

Recommendation

1.1

That the Sub-Committee note the activities undertaken in museums in
2019-20 and the impact made.

2.

Background

3.

2.1

Museums Worcestershire is the joint museum service for Worcester City Council
and Worcestershire County Council. Since its establishment in 2010, local
residents’ satisfaction with museums has increased significantly and both
authorities have been able to reduce their spending on museums through efficient
shared working.

2.2

In Worcester City, Museums Worcestershire manage the Art Gallery & Museum,
The Commandery and cares for the collections of the City which, starting in 1833
makes Worcester’s the 6th oldest museum in the country. The service runs
programmes of exhibitions, events, formal and informal learning for all ages and
supports wider culture and heritage through joint projects and professional
advice.

2.3

Museums Worcestershire has been hosted by Worcester City Council since July
2018. The service is overseen by a Joint Museums Committee with members from
both authorities.

Information
3.1

The appended annual review of Museums Worcestershire activity in 2019-20 was
approved by the Joint Museums Committee at their July meeting.

3.2

The report highlights the impact that museums make in the City and County,
illustrated through case studies, comments from users and performance figures.

3.3

Visitors to the Art Gallery & Museum were at their highest for many years,
reflecting a particularly strong and popular programme of exhibitions including
artworks by Matisse and Turner and Star Wars memorabilia.

3.4

The service made transformation savings of £76,000, and raised more than
£87,000 of external grant funding for museum projects. The Art Gallery &
Museum alone generated more than £1million of economic impact by attracting
visitors into Worcester.

Page 44

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:

All Wards
Philippa Tinsley, Museums Manager, 01905 25371,
philippa.tinsley@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers:
none
Supporting documents:Museums Worcestershire Annual Review 19-20

Page 45

Annual review 2019-20

Agenda Item 8

Appendix 1

Museums Worcestershire

Museums Worcestershire is a partnership between
Worcester City Council and Worcestershire County Council

In 2019-20
Museums Worcestershire
worked towards our 2019-24 strategic
plan, being:
our three venues

Ambitious, working with new partners and funders
to invest £87k of external funding into the service

Dedicated, serving our most vulnerable
communities through special projects

“It is a privilege for Meadow Arts to be working with an
historic collection, especially in a museum like Worcester’s,
which plays such an important part in minding our heritage,
while also contributing so much to the present.”
Anne de Charmant, Director and Curator Meadow Arts, Living
Ruins project at the Art Gallery & Museum

Page 46

Relevant, welcoming more than 100,000 visitors to

Thank you
 for supporting the difference we make
through our exhibitions, projects and
events
 for giving whenever you can to support
the museums you know and love
 and thank you to our Joint Museums
Committee, our funding Councils and
our staff
Page 47

Thank you to Angie Bishop and
Garston Phillips who retired in
2019 and between them
contributed 80 years of service
to Worcester’s Museums.

Our Museums: The Commandery
A challenging year financially, as Museums Worcestershire made transformation savings of £76,000 and The Commandery then felt the
impact of Sidbury summer season roadworks, the worst flooding for many years and finally the Coronavirus epidemic.
The appointment of new staff at the start of 2020 has enabled The Commandery to begin to reposition its commercial offer and to widen
its offer for local families. A successful February half term filled with family crafts and science experiments led to a 26% increase in visitors.

Page 48
In February 2020 a group of Chelsea Pensioners from the Royal Hospital Chelsea made a special trip to Worcester to visit The Commandery
and learn more about King Charles II who was the founder of The Royal Hospital.
Chelsea Pensioner Michael Allen said “We’ve really enjoyed our visit; it was definitely worth the trip!”
Since The Commandery refocussed its learning offer, 1 in every 8 visitors is a student visiting on a school trip:
“The tour guides, as ever, were incredibly knowledgeable and really bought the subjects to life. The students loved doing the pike drill, and
in particular enjoyed the gruesome stories about surgery in the Civil War and the damage that could be done by the various weapons!”

Commandery Café
The Commandery Café continues to
make a positive contribution to the
visitor experience and has also
attracted its own loyal following:
“Just used the café as I was cycling past
on the towpath. Very friendly
welcome, great food and good coffee.
Just what I needed.”

Page 49

“Sat having afternoon tea in glorious
sunshine with fresh home-made food
and very pleasant staff”

“Family friendly and a great choice of
cakes, a plentiful pot of tea. Will call in
again.”

Our Museums: Worcester City Art Gallery & Museum
Working with the Southbank Centre London, the Ashmolean Museum Oxford, the Tate,
contemporary curators Meadow Arts and individual collectors alongside Worcester’s own
collections, we brought outstanding art and artefacts to Worcester including Turner’s
sketchbook and a first edition of Pride and Prejudice.

Page 50

 A very successful year, attracting the most visitors since 2011-12
 Increased engagement with harder-to-reach communities and
visitors with different neuro-divergent needs
 A strong exhibitions programme drew visitors from across the
country to Worcester, contributing in excess of £1m to the local
economy.
“Equivalent to exhibitions in London. Very envious, we have nothing
like this near me. People of Worcester – you are very lucky”

May The Toys Be With You
24,000 visitors
Opening event sponsored by the
Worcestershire Ambassadors.
“We drove from South Wales to visit
today. Big Star Wars fans. Awesome
retro exhibition. Superb, Best Ever!”
“Thank you for entertaining us all
summer”

Page 51

Compared to the summer exhibition in
2018:
 15% increase in attendance by
visitors who don’t often engage
with museums
 7% increase in visits by men
 More diverse audience with 8%
from Asian British or multiple
ethnic background compared to
3% the previous year.

.

In partnership with Hartlebury Castle Preservation Trust
“We all had a brilliant time and the children loved it. The half term craft activities were great, it kept the children
entertained for ages and they loved exploring the house”
5***** Star Review on Trip Advisor
A very successful Christmas event, which saw a 15% increase in visitors, included working with Help for Heroes to
introduce new families and carers to Hartlebury.
“Such a warm welcome to everyone, very attentive and very much caring about everyone having a great experience.”
Laurie Kennedy, Help for Heroes
“We went to The Christmas event today.... Amazing!!!! THE Santa was in attendance, the forge in full flow. Fabulous
carol singers, brilliant atmosphere. We were there for the whole day.”

Page 52

Our Museums: Worcestershire County Museum at Hartlebury Castle

A Spring Clean
Over the winter, volunteers
undertook conservation cleaning,
cataloguing and photographing
the objects in the Nursery,
Victorian Drawing Room, Laundry
and Scullery. They also cleaned
and dusted every item, including
art, ceramics, textiles, natural
history, social history and
furniture.

Page 53

It provided a fantastic opportunity
for volunteers to work with
original collections and to learn
more about the work of our
curators and the objects in our
care.

Collections

Future Development Projects
Museums Worcestershire has received a grant of £82,200 over three years from the John Ellerman
Foundation to research its nationally significant Gypsy Vardo (caravan) collection.
Conservation
The most exciting collections project undertaken was the conservation of the unique sealgut parka to make it displayable in a physically stable condition. A bespoke support was
created which causes no stress to the garment. Following conservation, the seal gut parka
was displayed in the Mayflower 400 exhibition at the Art Gallery & Museum as part of
national commemorations.
Thank you to Members of the Art Gallery & Museum Membership Scheme and the
Leche Trust who funded this conservation project and to West Midlands Museum
Development who funded its research.

Page 54

Museums Worcestershire on Tour:
53 objects from the collections were displayed at venues across the county including the Museum of Royal
Worcester and Christopher Whitehead High School and seen by almost 46,000 people
And at Home:
More than 190 objects newly displayed across the three museums

Significant Collections: Glove Affair
Project 2019-2022
Gloves made in Worcester have been worn by
royalty, movie stars and even launched into space.

This community-based project that reconnects
people to their past, promotes better understanding
of Worcester’s international significance in the
gloving industry and leaves a legacy of glove making
in the county in which it once thrived.

This project is funded by the Esmee Fairbairn Foundation

The Glove Affair project has created 6 volunteers
opportunities in 19-20 that help promote physical
and mental wellbeing by offering meaningful and
rewarding opportunities. The social nature of the
work has led to them forming valued and supportive
relationships with one another and our younger
candidates have used the experience to further their
careers in the museums sector.

Page 55

The last Worcester glove manufacturer closed in
2015 and today evidence of the gloving community
exists only within local landmarks, with few people
able to recall the city’s gloving past. The communities
of Worcestershire have begun to lose any connection
they had with this important part of their heritage
and there is an urgent need to preserve this history.

Our Specialist Knowledge
Digital Presence
The new, more user-friendly
Museums Worcestershire website
was used by almost 50,000 people
during its first full year of
operation.

We have also provided support for the wider profession:
 Delivering advice on costume
 Best practice marketing case study presentation for
the National Trust
 Training in managing archaeological archives to nonspecialist museum curators
 Co-authored new standards / guidance for managing
archaeological archives for Society of Museum
Archaeology
 Training on Audience Insight on behalf of The
Audience Agency
 Supported researchers in their work both in UK
universities and as far away as Quebec, Canada
Museums Worcestershire also hosts the British Museum’s
Portable Antiquities Scheme support for museums and
finders across Worcestershire

Page 56

Facebook followers increased for
all three Museums Worcestershire
sites: the Commandery page grew
by 13% and the County Museum
page grew by over 15%. The Art
Gallery page grew by a huge 36%.

Using our expertise we have supported ten museums and
venues across Worcestershire in a variety of ways including
advice on pest treatment, moving collections, achieving
accreditation, and object identification.

Environmental Sustainability
Environmental concern underpins much of our day-to-day work, and we continue to
consider the impact of our actions during collection and exhibition work:
 repurposing exhibition and display furniture – for instance making an upcycled
starship flight desk
 limiting the amount of paper we print
 recycling and re-using supplies such as boxes, tissue and bubble wrap
 reviewing established collections storage methodology to reduce plastic elements
 working with Property teams to replace lights with LEDs
 appointed our first Green Champion, a voluntary role undertaken by one of our
curatorial team.

Page 57

Lifetime commitment to Hartlebury
Volunteer wheelwright Ced Lewis passed away peacefully in
September at the age of 90. Ced volunteered for the County
Museum for over 28 years. During this time he restored many
artefacts including the cider making press, the Gypsy caravans
and the Hartlebury fire engine. He also built many museum
props, including the 2/3 scale caravan 'Bita Rawni'.
He always enjoyed talking to visitors about his work and
passing his skills on to others. He will be very much missed.

Museums Worcestershire enjoys the enthusiasm and commitment
of 34 volunteers across its sites who have given us almost 4,000
hours across all areas of the service and have catalogued 3,000
museum items
We have also benefitted from 3 work experience placements from
schools across the county. Chris joined the Hartlebury team to
undertake 100 hours of work experience as part of his History
degree at Newman University. This included learning, collections
and visitor services.
“The staff at Hartlebury have made me feel very welcome and part
of team ever since I first arrived, which has made the experience
even more of a personal one for me. My experience at Hartlebury
has also been a great opportunity for me to develop my ability to
speak in front of a variety of different audiences. ”

Page 58

Volunteers

s

Supporting Our Communities:
Wellbeing

Visitor comments from the Matisse and
Diaghilev’s Ballets Russes exhibition:
“An interesting and beautiful exhibition! Les
Ballets Russes inspiring me to dance again!”
“The Matisse are full of life and calming –
made me smile all the way round.”
Visitor comment from Living Ruins exhibition
“Very thought provoking. Sparks off lots of
thoughts about our own place in time and in
the future.”

Page 59

Creative and cultural participation is the no.1
contributor to wellbeing.
Age UK, Index of Wellbeing in Later Life

Supporting Our
Communities:
Learning and Outreach

“All of your staff were extremely
welcoming, great with the
children and had great
knowledge to share with the
children. We loved the Victorian
Classroom and the children got
lots from it.”
“Creating an authentic
experience for children who have
little prior knowledge of a regular
working day in Victorian times.”
“Thank you so much, we have
learnt lots and you have made it
all come to life” Key Stage 2
teacher

Page 60

We welcomed more than 5800
students across our museums,
taught sessions to another 1673
students in schools and delivered
another 106 loans boxes. We
welcomed more than 300 homeeducated children and young
people.

Supporting Our Communities:
Suitcase Stories Project 19/20
An 18 month reminiscence and music project for
people living with dementia and their carers in the
Wyre Forest, Redditch, Bromsgrove and
Wychavon.

Page 61

133 sessions were delivered across care homes,
hospitals, museums and community centres using
real museum objects and inspiring music.
The project achieved:
 increase in participants’ wellbeing
 decrease in participants’ isolation
 increase in engagement and understanding
of museum objects and in music
Musicians gave performances of new songs that
were created from the participants’ memories.
 “P normally only converses with his daughter
and wife but when the singing started, he
bellowed out the song, he remembered
singing a few days later as well which is an
achievement.” NHS staff
 “It was great, really brilliant. B has come out
of himself a bit more. They forget about
their pains when they are doing the activity”
Activities Co-ordinator
 “Music and socialising works far better than
any medication” Participant

This project was delivered in partnership with Arts Uplift CiC, an arts and health
organisation, and kindly funded by Arts Council England, The Elmley Foundation,
Worcestershire County Council, Worcestershire Arts Partnership, Wychavon District
Council, Wyre Forest District Council, Bromsgrove and Redditch District Council,
Bransford Trust and John Martins Trust.

Museums Worcestershire’s
Response to Covid-19
At the time of preparing this Annual
Review the world is in the grip of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

We also contributed PPE items normally
used for collections care to
Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS
Trust.
Throughout this global emergency, we
aim to remain relevant, ambitious and
dedicated to our communities and
visitors.

Page 62

Knowing how important our museums
are to our visitors - particularly those in
vulnerable groups - we feel strongly that
we need to stay connected to our
communities. We have quickly created
easily accessible digital content
including exhibitions, activities and
collections. The response so far has
been overwhelming, with a four-fold
increase in online interactions.

“Our museums are, and should continue to be, a source of pride for our
city and county”
Councillor Mike Johnson, Chairman, Joint Museums Committee 2019-20

Page 63

“Museums Worcestershire repeatedly excels in embedding itself in the
communities it serves; in sharing its expertise to support partners locally
and further afield, in providing an award-winning formal and informal
learning service, and contributing to our local economy through a high
quality and ambitious exhibitions programme.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 65

Agenda Item 9

Report to: Place and Economic Development Sub-Committee, 29th October 2020
Report of: Corporate Director - Place

Subject:
1.

CITY CENTRE MARKETS

Recommendation
That Place and Economic Development Sub Committee:

1.1

Approves the principle of managing the different elements of the City’s
markets offer separately on the expiry of the current contractual
arrangements in January, being:
a. Weekend High Street markets (covered in this report)
b. Angel Place traders (covered in this report)
c. Victorian Christmas Fayre market stalls (to be discussed at a future
sub-committee meeting)

1.2

Authorises the Director of Place, in consultation with the Chair and Vice
Chair of the Sub Committee, to procure operators through a concession
contract for a period of up to 5 years with the option of a further 2 years
extension, to deliver weekend High Street markets (Saturday and/or
Sunday).

1.3

Authorises the Director of Place to directly award a contract to a market
operator to manage the Angel Place market on an interim basis for a period
of up to 2 years, pending the implementation of the Future High Streets
Fund redevelopment if this bid is successful.

1.4

Notes that a report will be brought to the Sub-Committee next year giving
options for the future delivery of the Victorian Christmas Fayre.

1.5

Agrees that the City Council should offer to act as a single point of contact
to manage events and bookings within the City Centre and notes that the
Director of Place will engage with the County Council to achieve this.

2.

Background

2.1

LSD Promotions have delivered the Worcester City Council markets contract since
December 2014. The contract comes to an end on 31 January 2021 (having been
extended by 12 months through provisions contained within the existing contract).

2.2

In January 2020, Worcester City Council commissioned specialist markets
consultancy The Assembly Line to review the Worcester markets arrangements.

Page 66

The review made recommendations about the future markets offer for the city,
considering the Council’s ambitions for the City Centre and the current economic
conditions.
2.3

The review included meetings with city centre stakeholders, elected members,
Business Improvement District officers and board members, County Council officers,
LSD Promotions, and other market operators as well as current market traders. The
study also included a review of background material. To engage the wider public, an
online survey was completed by 337 residents and 79 businesses.

2.4

After the consultation exercise was undertaken, lockdown was imposed due to
COVID-19. The Council has planned extensively for the economic recovery of
Worcester and the recommendations were reviewed to ensure that they remain
appropriate for the medium to long term.

2.5

Compared to national figures, Worcester is a city which is currently ‘bucking the
trend’ in the city centre, with higher than average footfall and lower than average
retail vacancy. It is a city which has a range of high-quality High Street names and
more than 60% independent retailers.

2.6

Despite the impact of COVID-19 on consumer behaviour and the ongoing evolution
of the High Street, Worcester is still a shopping hub for residents as well as a
destination for tourists. Footfall in September 2020 was at c.70% of September 2019
and the TIC are reporting visitors to the city from across the country.

2.7

However, in common with the national picture, the city centre is experiencing an
increasing number of empty units and markets can have a valuable role to play in
helping ensure that the city centre remains a destination of choice for shopping and
visiting.

3.

Angel Place market

3.1

Local market stalls make a valuable contribution to the economy, providing
employment opportunities and an income for small business owners. The provision of
goods on the market allows city centre employees to shop locally on their lunchbreak
or on their way home.

3.2

Angel Place market hosts a small number of regular traders, with fruit and veg,
clothes and other essentials alongside records and hot food. Most of these traders
have been located there for several years and play an important role in the local
community, with committed shoppers who make regular trips to the city centre to
shop with them.

3.3

Angel Place is acknowledged as a major space in the city centre which should be
animated, and activities within it could be coordinated more effectively. It forms the
basis of the Future High Streets Fund bid and stakeholders are working together on
plans to develop the area. The vision for the area includes several high-quality,
attractive market stalls.

3.4

If the Future High Streets Fund bid is successful, Angel Place will be remodelled.
There will still be provision at this location for the established traders.

Page 67

4.

High Street Market

4.1

The High Street market has been in operation on a Saturday since 2015. It was one
of the requirements of the contract when it was last re-tendered, having been
identified as an opportunity by members and officers following successful markets in
2013 and 2014.

4.2

It is a popular addition to the High Street, working alongside independent and
national retailers to widen the offer and provide more reason for the public to choose
to shop in Worcester over other locations.

4.3

The LSD Promotions weekend High Street market is not currently operational as the
operator considers it is not viable for them to deliver this in light of the COVID-19
restrictions. The Council has been approached by other operators who are interested
in arranging market and street food events in Worcester and several High Street
weekend markets have been booked between now and Christmas to fill the dates
vacated by LSD Promotions.

5.

Consultants’ Report – Summary

5.1

Context

5.1.1 UK High Streets have been under a great deal of scrutiny in recent years. Changing
consumer habits have contributed to an evolution of the traditional function of town
and city centres away from an over-reliance on retail to a focus on more leisure
activities and food and drink.
5.1.2 At the same time, markets in the UK are also going through a transition. Whilst
many market towns have continued to view the market as central to their identity, in
many places the offer has too often failed to keep up with changing shopping habits,
leading to a slow decline in popularity and viability.
5.1.3 LSD Promotions has delivered almost all markets in the city centre since 2014. When
the contract was first awarded, it included several markets which have since been
withdrawn by LSD, stating lack of viability due to trader numbers and/or footfall.
5.2

Feedback from residents and businesses

5.2.1 In the survey conducted by the consultants, shopping was cited as the main reason
for residents to visit the city (63%) followed by work (10%).
5.2.2 When asked what kind of market respondents would like to see, the most common
responses included antiques, farmers markets, food and handmade / local.
5.2.3 Shoppers are looking for unique goods that they are unable to find elsewhere in the
city, with a focus on local and independent traders.
5.2.4 In subsequent engagement, some businesses have expressed concerns about
market traders competing with their own products.
5.3

Feedback from market traders

5.3.1 Despite challenging conditions for retail markets, Worcester traders reported that up
to March 2020, trade was about the same or better than expected over the last three
years. In the summer, trade is usually boosted by day trippers.

Page 68

5.3.2 Most traders do not wish to move location and are happy in Angel Place but would
benefit from increased signage to Angel Place, as well as an increase in peripheral
activity (e.g. outdoor seating, entertainment, etc)
5.3.3 Traders have reported that, since the closure of the Saturday High Street market by
LSD, Saturdays on Angel Place have seen a resurgence and the market is currently
almost full of traders. Latest reports from LSD have shown that, since July, on a
Saturday, Angel Place hosted between 8 and 11 traders and up to 16 stalls.
5.3.4 However, traders have given mixed feedback on the current viability of the Angel
Place market in terms of trade. Footfall in the city is lower and there is a reduced
number of people using public transport, both of which could have an impact on
customers and the amount of money they are spending. Further restrictions on nonessential shops opening, or localised lockdowns would have a negative impact on
trade. It is clear that the Angel Place market is particularly sensitive to price, both
for traders and for their customers and so future models of delivery need to
recognise this.
5.4

Further information

5.4.1 The markets are not currently part of the tourist offer but there is potential for them
to be included in the future. Council officers are working with LSD Promotions and
market traders to increase the profile of the Angel Place market and remind
residents as part of the Council’s ongoing Shop Local campaigns.
5.4.2 According to the Markets Matter report, produced by the Institute of Place
Management, good quality markets benefit towns and cities in many ways. They
provide a boost to the economy by increasing footfall, attracting tourists,
encouraging spend in all city retailers and providing local employment. As well as
this, they encourage community cohesion and contribute to community development
through the creation of entrepreneurial opportunities.
5.4.3 The markets also make an important contribution to the Council’s finances. The
Council receives an annual management fee of £33,000 from the markets operation
under normal circumstances and also has income from LSD of £19,000 each year for
the Christmas lights concession and approximately £108,000 for the Victorian Fayre.
However, the income from these last two elements is wholly offset by costs incurred
by the Council in supporting delivery of the events.
5.4.4 The market concession fee income for 2020/21 will be considerably reduced as the
result of a change to a fee-per-stall basis in response to the Covid-19 disruption.
6.

Preferred Option

6.1

Angel Place Market (Wednesday to Saturday)

6.1.1 There are regular market traders who have, in some cases, traded from Angel Place
for many years. This proposal seeks to secure their future at this site and
accommodate them within the wider Future High Streets remodelling of Angel Place,
assuming that the bid is successful.
6.1.2 The recommendation is to invite a known market operator to act as caretaker for the
Angel Place market and traders until Angel Place development work takes place. This
interim arrangement may be required for between 1-2 years.

Page 69

After this time, assuming the Council’s bid has been successful, established pitches
will be designed into the new scheme to house up to 12 Angel Place traders.
6.1.3 Council officers have been able to test this proposal with potential operators for this
interim arrangement. The full details are set out in the confidential appendix to this
report. The key features are as follows:
 Stall fees will not be increased from their current rate;
 Stallholders will benefit from having a full-time market manager on-site (which is
not currently in place);
 There will be an improved visual offer through a renewal of the stall canopies;
 The model is financially viable for the operator and for the Council, subject
obviously to any major changes in local or national circumstances.
6.1.4 It is proposed that the Council makes a direct award to a market operator for this
interim contract. The contract is for a short duration which limits its financial value
and the Council is legally permitted to make a direct award for a contract of this
value if this is considered a best value solution. The benefit in making a direct award
rather than running a tender process is that the Council can ensure that provision is
made for the Angel Place traders to keep operating without disruption when the
contract with LSD expires on 31 January 2021. The Council has negotiated terms
with an operator (as summarised above) which officers consider represent a best
value solution.
6.1.5 This approach is based on a fee per stall, which will be charged to the stall
operators, with an element paid to the Council for the concession. It is estimated
that this may generate income for the Council of approximately £12,000 per year
but this is dependent upon the number of stallholders that participate and the
frequency of operation.
6.2

Weekend High Street Market and other events.

6.2.1 The recommendation is to create a concession contract to offer opportunities to
market operators to deliver regular themed markets on the High Street at weekends
(e.g. farmers’ market, arts, or antique markets). Four concessions will be offered
(one for each weekend in a month) and these can be delivered by one or multiple
operators.
6.2.2 In addition, ad-hoc special events can be commissioned to utilise other areas in the
city centre, including Cathedral Square, Cornmarket and the Riverside. The objective
will be to animate the High Street with attractive events which provide a point of
interest for visitors and residents and do not detract from existing High Street
businesses.
6.2.3 A procurement process for a new concession contract will be commenced, subject to
the Sub-Committee’s approval, with the new weekend markets starting in the spring
of 2021, or earlier (depending on COVID-19 restrictions at the time). It is proposed
that the new concession contract is 5 years in duration with an option for an earlier
break clause (for example, around year 3) and the option to further extend beyond
the 5-year term for a final period of 2 years.
6.2.4 The concession model requires the operator to pay a fee to the Council for managing
the markets. The operator funds this from the income it receives from stallholders.

Page 70

Under the concession model, the income risk principally sits with the operator which
must invest in the contract to ensure it remains attractive to stallholders. For this
new contract, it is proposed that the Council receives a fee per stall, rather than a
single overall fee. This should help ensure that the model is financially viable for the
operator, the stallholders and the Council. As with any services contract, the Council
will agree with the operator a set of quality standards, outputs and outcomes to
which the markets must be delivered.
6.2.5 The potential value of this contract, and the income for the Council, is difficult to
assess as it is dependent on estimates that potential market operators will make
regarding the types of activity involved, the frequency of events and the level of
uptake by participants. There may also be operational costs for the Council which
have yet to be considered, such as preparatory work and clean-up activities.
6.3

Victorian Fayre
It is recommended that this is the subject of further evaluation by the SubCommittee in the new year to include any learning from the alternative
arrangements which are in place for this Christmas. The Sub-Committee will be
asked to consider options for the future management of that event.

6.4

Activation of space in the city centre.

6.4.1 The City Council should seek to engage with the County Council to secure
responsibility for managing the booking of all space in the city centre.
6.4.2 There are several County Council managed sites in Worcester City Centre that can be
booked for marketing, arts and community use. There is a charge for this service,
and this is booked via Worcestershire County Council. Spaces which are available for
hire are:
 Angel Place
 The High Street outside of the Guildhall
 South Quay by the River Severn
6.4.3 The consultants recommend that for the restructure of Angel Place to be effective,
the City should work with the County to agree the transfer of the management of
city centre spaces for events and activities, including the booking of the diadem in
Angel Place which currently has no strategic reference to the market operation.
6.4.4 Even though the bookings are not currently managed by the City Council, the onsite
city centre management team often deals directly with hirers to manage issues,
ensuring they are following guidelines and are set up correctly. It should be noted
that the County’s streetscene team do work closely with the city centre management
team to try to minimise these issues, but the challenge of managing space when not
located directly in it can lead to problems with both hirers and the businesses around
them.
6.5

Summary

6.5.1 Accepting the above recommendations will allow for cohesive management of the
city centre and all markets and commercial activity within it, enabling officers to
curate a positive and memorable High Street experience for both residents and
visitors.

Page 71

6.5.2 It will meet the objectives of the tourism strategy and city plan and will support local
businesses by providing an effective market management service. It will also support
the local community by maintaining and improving market services.
7.

Alternative Options Considered

7.1

Re-let the whole markets concession contract (High Street, Angel Place and
Victorian Fayre) in its current format to one operator:

7.1.1 The experience of the current contracting arrangements and the feedback from
consultation suggests there are no major benefits to be gained from managing all
aspects of the markets offer through one single arrangement. Different
considerations apply in particular to the management of the Victorian Fayre to the
regular markets.
7.1.2 It may be possible for a single supplier to manage the High Street markets and the
Angel Place traders but, as noted above, flexibility is required over the Angel Place
arrangements until the outcome of the Future High Streets Fund bid is known. It is
recognised that Angel Place should remain the location of those established traders
but exactly what form that arrangement takes, after any development, is still to be
determined. For example, the Council could choose to regulate traders in the longer
term through a licensing consent scheme instead of through a market operator.
7.1.3 Retendering the Angel Place contract now presents a risk that suitable provision will
not be in place when the current contract with LSD comes to an end in January
2021. This would cause disruption for traders and potential increased costs for both
traders and the Council.
7.2

Manage the operations fully in-house:

7.2.1 The Council does not currently have the resources or capability to manage all of the
proposed market arrangements in-house. It would require significant investment in
both infrastructure and staffing. Existing market operators have the resources and
capability and can offer economies of scale as they deliver markets in other areas.
7.3

Move the location of the Angel Place market:

7.3.1 No other location has been identified as more suitable. For example, the Cornmarket
is not suitable for a market as it is designated as highway. Closing the road would
require significant investment in infrastructure to protect pedestrians from moving
vehicles.
7.3.2 In consultation with market traders, they have confirmed their preference is to stay
in the established market location, for various reasons with the most common being
that the proximity to the bus station allows customers to travel home easily with
their purchases.
7.4

Establish the Angel Place traders under street trading licences instead of
through a market operator:

7.4.1 It would be possible for the Council to grant individual street trading licences to
traders instead of procuring a markets operator. This could be a possible long-term
solution for Angel Place.

Page 72

However, the Council’s street trading licencing regime would benefit from a review
before this could be considered a preferred option for all parties. Current licence
terms and fees may be prohibitive to traders and may constrain the Council’s ability
to have flexibility and control over the management of its public spaces. The Council
would also have to arrange for storage and assembly of the market stalls every week
which would incur additional costs.
8

Implications

8.1

Financial and Budgetary Implications

8.1.1 The financial benefits of the recommended options are set out in the report as far as
they can be determined at this stage. The current market concession provides
income of £33,000 per year for the Council but the operator indicates that this value
is not sustainable in the medium term and is unlikely to be recovered in the current
financial year due to the Covid-19 disruption. The Council should be able to recover
a proportion of this year’s losses through the Government income compensation
scheme.
8.1.2 The implications of the High Street markets contract preferred option can be
assessed once the potential providers have submitted bids for the concessions.
Further reports covering the implications for the Victorian Fayre contract will be
provided to the Sub-Committee in due course.
8.1.3 The financial implications of the interim contract for Angel Place are set out in
section 6.1.5.
8.2

Legal and Governance Implications

8.2.1 The High Streets markets concession contract will be procured subject to a
competitive process in compliance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
8.2.2 The interim concession contract for the Angel Place contract will be procured through
a direct award without a competitive process. The value of this short-term contract is
below the threshold requirement for competitive tendering and therefore compliant
with the law; the Council must nevertheless demonstrate best value in making a
direct award. The Council’s efforts to explore all options helps to demonstrate that
this interim proposal is a best value solution.
8.3

Risk Implications

8.3.1 There is a risk that the Council’s income from its markets reduces compared to the
previous baseline position. This risk cannot be quantified until the procurement
process for the High Streets markets contract has been concluded. However, it is
proposed that the fee-per-stall model will reduce the risk of the contract becoming
financially unsustainable for any party.
8.3.2 There is a risk that inadequate bids are received for the High Street concession
contract. This risk is considered to be low based on feedback from traders and
operators and the information gathered by the consultancy review.
8.4

Corporate/Policy Implications

Page 73

8.4.1 The Council’s markets support the City Plan objectives and also the Council’s
ambitions to maintain a vibrant city centre, as set out in the Masterplan and recent
future High Streets Fund bid.
8.5

Equality Implications

8.5.1 The equality implications of the Council’s markets offer were considered as part of
the consultancy review of the markets. No specific equality impacts have been
identified. The Council will ensure through its contracting arrangements that the
requirements of the Equality Act 2010 are passed on to operators.
8.6

Human Resources Implications

8.6.1 The proposal for the City Council to offer a single point of contact for city centre
events can be accommodated through existing staff resources. There are no other
specific human resources implications identified.
8.7

Health and Safety Implications

8.7.1 The Council will ensure through its contracting arrangements that robust health and
safety standards are in place for all the markets.
8.8

Social, Environmental and Economic Implications

8.8.1 The proposals in the report are designed to ensure the markets make an enhanced
contribution to the social, environmental and economic wellbeing of the local
community.

Ward(s):
Contact Officer:
Background Papers:

Cathedral
Helen Mole, 01905 722309, helen.mole@worcester.gov.uk
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 75
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 12

This page is intentionally left blank

